

The Western Reserver is summent in the meth cast quarter of the State between Stake i no on the worth. Periorgleman is set of the I and open an average so from neither to reach the area is not settled by the bady of States of and is staten of from the wort of the to and open an average so from neither to reach the area is not settled of a long of States of and is staten of from the wort of the to of Connecticut, as a dentitien to certain sufferers to for economical to the Confict and the Contest of the to state of the to get the to and the following Contest of the to the to and the the state of the to and the following Contest of the to and particulated and the following Contest of the to and particulation and the following Contest of the to and particular to the following Contest of the to and the mathematic and particular to the following Contest of the to and the mathematic and particular to the following Contest of the to and the to the state of the to the the votent of Connecticut on the state a charter right to all the and indicated article of the to the to the the state of the to and the following for the to a charter right to all the mathematical and particul for the the to and the following to the the to and the the state of the the to a chart of the indicated article of the the to a chart of the indicate the state of the the state of the to and the the state of the to and the the state of the to and the the state of the the the state of the the the state of the the state of the the test of the the the test of the the the test of the the theory of the the theory of the the the test of the the the test of the the test of the t

DHIO ARCHITECT

THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS, INC

september 1960



SEND FOR COMPLETE GENERAL CATALOG OF ALUMINUM RAILINGS AND GRILL COPYRIGHT 1960 BY BLUMCRAFT OF PITTSBURGH + + 460 MELWOOD ST., PITTSBURGH 13, PENNSYLVAN

OFFICERS

President Harold W. Goetz, AIA 56 South Main Street Middletown, Ohio

First Vice-President Gilbert Coddington, AIA Brooks & Coddington 3826 North High Street Columbus, Ohio

Second Vice-President Howard B. Cain, AIA Park Building Cleveland 14, Ohio

Immediate Past-President Hermon S. Brodrick, AIA 312 Harries Building Dayton 2, Ohio Secretary Frank E, Poseler, AIA Britsch, Macelwane & Assoc. 2446 Sylvania Avenue Toledo, Ohio

> Treasurer Joseph Tuchman, AIA Tuchman & Canute 777 West Market Street Akron 3, Ohio

Third Vice-President Orville H. Bauer, AIA

Bellman, Gillett & Richards

1600 Madison Avenue Toledo 2, Ohio

Executive Director Clifford E. Sapp 5 East Long Street Columbus, Ohio

EDITORIAL STAFF

Publication Committee Chairman Howard B. Cain, AIA Park Building Cleveland 14, Ohio

Technical Editor David A. Pierce, AIA 4501 North High Street Columbus 14, Ohio Managing Editor Clifford E. Sapp 5 East Long Street Columbus 15. Ohio Telephone: Capital 1-9630 Editor

Mary Flannery 5 East Long Street Columbus, Ohio

ASSOCIATE EDITORS

Cincinnati William R. Bogart, AIA 6102 Ridge Ave, Cincinnati 13, Ohio

Cleveland Charles E. Rimer Mather Lane Hunting Valley Village Chagrin Falls, Ohio

Columbus Richard H. Eiselt, AIA 332 S. Cassady Ave. Columbus 9, Ohio Dayton Robert J. Makarius, Jr., AIA 312 Harries Building Dayton 2, Ohio

Eastern Ohio Roger F. Buzzard, AIA 532 West Park Ave. Barberton, Ohio

Toledo Noel J. Blank Security Building Toledo 4, Ohio

OHIO ARCHITECT is the monthy official magazine of the Architects Society of Ohio, Inc., of the American Institute of Architects, Opinions expressed herein are not necessarily those of the Society.

Editorial and Advertising office: Five East Long Street, Columbus 15, Ohio. Printed at: The Lawhead Press, 900 East State Street, Athens, Ohio.

OHIO ARCHITECT publishes educational articles, architectural and building news, news of persons and the activities of the Architects Society of Ohio.

OHIO ARCHITECT is available at a subscription cost of \$4.00 each year or .50 cents each issue. Roster issue: \$1.00.

MAP Revenue Answer: Answer:

Copyright 1960 Architects Society of Ohio, Inc. of the American Institute of Architects, All rights reserved.

OHIO ARCHI

OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS, INC

SEPTEMBER, 1960

Volume XVIII

Number 9

CONTENTS

FEATURES

Architectural Evolution of the Western Reserve . . 6 By Elmer E. Bjerregaard, Instructor Kent State University

AIA AND ASO NEWS

Convention IMAGE 13	3
Stained Glass Association Meets 15	j
Advertisers in <i>Ohio Architect</i> 22)

COVER AND FEATURE MATERIAL

Cover and feature material for this issue were under the direction of Roger F. Buzzard, AIA, associate editor of the Eastern Ohio Chapter of the AIA.

An early map of the Western Reserve, dated September, 1826, is pictured on the cover. The original map is on file at the Western Reserve Historical Society, Cleveland.

nothing performs like Clay Pipe for Air Conditioning Systems



No other material is so easy and inexpensive to install . . . so efficient in its performance. Ease of installation keeps material and labor costs at a minimum . . . requires no special skills. New longer lengths speed up the job. And Clay Pipe ducts don't float or squash out during slab pouring.

The very qualities of clay itself make first costs the last. Clay Pipe—and only Clay Pipe—is completely rust, rot, and corrosion-proof. Its smooth vitrified surface won't flake off or collect dirt and odors, making it equally efficient for carrying either heated or cooled air.

Protect your reputation . . . cut your costs. Install Clay Pipe heating and air-conditioning ducts. Write for free Heating Duct Installation Manual.

*All Clay Pipe manufactured by CSPA members is backed by a 100-year written guarantee!



CLAY SEWER PIPE ASSOCIATION, INC.

311 High-Long Building • 5 E. Long St. • Columbus 15, Ohio

CS-160-93

Bankers and Real Estate Agents know why...

99% of all homes built in East Ohio's area since 1950 are heated with GAS

Because most prospects demand the convenience and economy of automatic Gas heat.

Because only Gas offers the dependable, trouble-free service that guarantees customer satisfaction.

Because Gas heating equipment installs easily—adapts to any heating system, in homes of all sizes and styles.

Because a clean heat like Gas keeps maintenance to a minimum.

No doubt about it—Gas heat helps rent apartments and sell houses easier. For information about how Gas adapts to your prospects' needs, call your local East Ohio Gas Company office.

THE EAST OHIO GAS COMPANY



An example of the early Republican style of architecture is the Congregational Church at Tallmadge. (photographs by Elmer E. Bjerregaard)

Architectural Evolution of the Western Reserve

By Elmer E. Bjerregaard, Instructor Kent State University

As one journeys through the many small villages in the northern third of Ohio, one quickly senses that this area, with its village green and centrally located church spire, is quite different from the rest of the state. This part of our state, which has been labeled the Western Reserve of Ohio, has a New England flavor and heritage. Why did the tiny state of Connecticut have claim to this valuable strip of land, and why were the western half-million acres of the Western Reserve called the "Fire Lands?" These questions I will try to answer, and, in doing so, give some insight into the historical embryo which produced the rapidly changing early architecture of this region.

The story of the Ohio Western Reserve starts in the year 1662 during the reign of Charles II of England. A Charter was granted to the state of Connecticut which stated its boundaries were, "From the south line of Massachusetts, on the north, to Long Island Sound on the south, and from the Narragansett River, on the east, to the Pacific Ocean on the west." The first men who explored the coastal regions of our country did not know about the extent of the land which existed beyond the small area they had discovered.

The Spanish explorer, Balboa, reported that he could stand in the center of the land and see both the Atlantic and Pacific Oceans. The popular belief during his time was that the entire land was the same breadth. It is now thought by historians that Balboa was standing in the middle of the present Isthmus of Panama while making the above observation. Because of the belief that this newly discovered land had little breadth, it was believed that all the land that extended beyond the small confines of the English settle-SEPTEMBER, 1960 ments was the property of the English Crown. Also, the English Crown felt it had the power to give this unexplored land to anyone it might choose, and since the land had not been seen or surveyed, the King could not define the boundaries of his grants. When he gave Connecticut a grant, he left the western boundary indefinite.

In the 1750's colonists from Connecticut, who believed this western extent of land was their rightful property, began to move and settle in the region of Pennsylvania; and only after a bitter struggle with the state of Pennsylvania did Connecticut give up her claims to the strip of land in this state. However, Connecticut did not relinquish her claim to the lands west of Pennsylvania's boundary.

It was soon noted by Congress that these strips of land, granted to several states, would have to be divided into more logical and easily governed territories. In September of 1786 Connecticut conceded most of her claims to the Congress, but "reserved" a valuable 120-mile strip of land south of Lake Erie. Congress accepted Connecticut's "Reservation," and authorized her right to the land. The territory was called "The Connecticut Western Reserve," "New Connecticut," and "The Connecticut Reserve." In Ohio this land came to be known as "The Western Reserve."

Connecticut worked out many schemes for the distribution of land in the Western Reserve, and in 1795 a plan was finally accepted by her General Assembly. The lands of the Western Reserve were to be sold unsurveyed for not less than \$1,000,000. (This amounted to thirty-three cents an acre!) However, one had to purchase the entire Western Reserve. In September of 1795 the land was purchased by 35 men for \$1,200,000 under the name of the Connecticut Land Co. Surveyors were sent into the Reserve to run a boundary line to the Cuyahoga River and lay out townships that were to be five miles square.

The western part of the Reserve, 25 miles wide, had a dissimilar and more dramatic history than its eastern neighboring lands. In 1792 the General Assembly of Connecticut appropriated this land for persons who had suffered property loss during the Revolutionary War. The land was given to families of Fairfield, New London and Norwalk, Conn., whose houses had been burned. The people of Connecticut called this piece of land the "Sufferers Lands," and the people of Ohio called it the "Fire Lands."

The pattern of settlement in the Western Reserve was quite different from what one would expect. Instead of developing from the Pennsylvania border and moving west, these people went to their assigned spots, and many were 15 or 20 miles from their nearest neighbors.

Our vigorous forefathers who founded our country, like the early settlers of the Reserve, had a great urge to quickly attain their desired objectives. While it was necessary to build a crude log cabin as a temporary one room shelter, these pioneers were soon ready to abandon or convert their rudimentary shelter into a larger frame house. As they became more affluent, they moved on to even larger and better homes. It is this process or evolution which constantly changed the early architecture of the Western Reserve.

During the early period, 1790's to 1850's, the architecture of this region went through at least four distinct



Detail of the Congregational Church at Tallmadge.

phases of development. The ever changing environment, both geographic and social, had a hand in shaping and modifying the art of building. Let's explore some of the "styles" of the Western Reserve so we might have a better understanding of why many of these buildings are well proportioned and tasteful.

The first type of building in the Reserve was the dwellings of the pioneers. When the pioneers came to their appointed or purchased land, they often made a rude bark or brush shack shelter to survive until they could build a more permanent building. As soon as possible a log cabin was constructed. The architecture of this new frontier demanded much shelter against extreme weather conditions and Indian raids. The log cabin answered this requirement because it could be quickly assembled and was quite sturdy.

The dimensions of the log cabins of the Reserve were often 12 x 14 feet, or 14 x 16 feet, and were usually built of logs a foot or more in diameter. These logs were hewn flat on two sides and notched at the corner so the logs would lie close together. The roof was covered with clapboards or shingles of split oak, and long heavy poles held the rows of shingles in place. The fireplace was an important part of the cabin and usually occupied the greater part of Poge 8 one end. The period of the log cabin in the Western Reserve of Ohio was about 1795 to 1800.

The log cabin was soon replaced by a very simple dwelling. It was a severe undecorated building often seen today as part of a farmstead or larger dwelling. These early dwellings usually can be identified by the large pine trees which were planted on the corners of the lot, Many of them are interesting architecturally because of their harmony of proportion and the attention given to decorate and define their entrances. The period of this simple dwelling was from 1805 to about 1820.

During the period of the first houses a new architectural style, often labeled Federal or Early Republican, was introduced to the Western Reserve. This new style developed in the Eastern States during the beginning of the Federal Union around the 1780's.

The Early Republican style was brought to this country by Charles Bulfinch, a native of Boston. During a visit to England he was influenced by the work of Robert and James Adam, English architects and furniture designers doing work in and around London. By adding adamesque features to the basic Georgian structure, the fine house of the Eastern States, Bulfinch presented the Early Republican or Federal building to America. This style did not filter through to the Western Reserve until about 1800, and it lasted until the 1830's when the Greek Revival architectural style became prominent.

The Early Republican structure was essentially a classical structure, and the features which most quickly catalogue these buildings are their lightness and delicacy, elliptical windows, the semielliptical fanlights over the doorways and their slender Ionic fluted columns. These buildings achieve their lightness and delicacy through the well proportioned dimensions of the main building and the symmetry of the tall slender masses. A good example of this style of architecture is the Congregational Church at Tallmadge.

During the Early Republican period many houses were built which fell into no particular category. These early homes were quite plain. Some attention was given to decoration, primarily the doorways. The intricate carvings and well proportioned details of the doorways give the buildings a pleasing sense of scale.

While the Early Republican style of architecture flourished there was a rapid growth of population and a steady development of the economy. The people of the Reserve prospered and soon new roads and canals were constructed. It was during this period OHIO ARCHITECT



An early dwelling of the Western Reserve located near Berlin Center, Ohio.



A home built in the Republican style of architecture. The Kimball-Martin house located in Norwalk, Ohio.



An example of a simple form of the Greek Revival style—the Nathan Jenkins house located in Milan, Ohio.

that another style of architecture reached the people of Ohio from the Eastern States. This new style was known as the Greek Revival style. However, because of the pioneering conditions in the Reserve and its great distance from the New England States, one does not find many examples of this style before 1835 or 1840.

The Greek Revival movement started in America when Thomas Jefferson learned of the Roman style of architecture in Europe. He used examples of Classic Rome for inspiration. Under Jefferson's leadership the South was the first region to use this style. These first classic buildings, an expression of Roman Classicism, were soon superseded by the Greek form and proportions. Soon the Greek detail was so widely adopted that the period became popularly known as the Greek Revival.

This Greek Revival style used new interpretations of features of both the Georgian and Early Republican style. Greek ornamentation was used on doorways, windows, pediments and cornices; and the columned portico became heavier with more massive columns. This style was first used for public buildings and was adapted later for the homes of the prospering residents.

The early period of the Western Reserve was a busy one architecturally speaking. The thread of development through these years readily shows how geographic conditions and economy changed the style of building. This evolution is not unique in the history of architecture. Even today our buildings and designs reflect the tempo and rhythm of our period. Only through the objective study of earlier buildings can one grasp a glimpse of our own buildings and better understand the direction in which they will progress.

Today one sorrowfully watches many of these fine examples of architecture vanish before the oncoming ribbons of concrete and plazas of asphalt. Not too many years ago our state had a rich architectural heritage in the buildings of the Western Reserve. But today these buildings are sparse. There is much to be learned from the expressions of simplicity and balance of proportions these buildings impart.



A fine Greek Revival house located at Norwalk, Ohio.

The Mitchell-Turner house located in Milan shows the later development of the Greek Revival period.



SEPTEMBER, 1960



Specify this striking window beauty for your homes at surprisingly low cost

Andersen Beauty-Line Windows can add excitement and glamour to any room. Their unusually clean, simple lines add beauty to any home. Yet their total installed cost is no more—often less—than many cheap double hungs. And Beauty-Line Windows give your clients exceptional functional advantages.

They provide picture window beauty plus ventilation. They close weathertight to seal out drafts, dust, rain. Their handsome wood sash and frames are up to 1800 times more effective than metal sash and frames in shutting out heat and cold. Penta-treating protects permanently against termites, decay. And Beauty-Lines install easily. Operate trouble-free for life.

Andersen Windows are sold exclusively through lumber and millwork dealers throughout the U.S.A. and Canada. Get full specification data from Sweet's Architectural Files, from the Ohio Andersen Distributors or write: Andersen Corporation, Bayport, Minn,

GET SPECIFICATION DATA ON Andersen Windowalls FROM THESE OHIO JOBBERS:

CINCINNATI

Acme Sash & Door Co. 1250 Tennessee Ave., MElrose 1-4400

CLEVELAND The Whitmer-Jackson Co. 1996 W. Third St., CHerry 1-5365

COLUMBUS Huttig Sash & Door Co. 1791 Kenny Road, HUdson 6-4367 DAYTON Dayton-Akron Sash & Door Co. 8 Norwood Ave., BAldwin 4-5626

MASSILLON The Whitmer-Jackson Co. 16th St. & Harsh Ave., TEmple 3-8511

TOLEDO Allen A. Smith Company 1216 W. Bancroft St., CHerry 4-5531

A Prophet That the Builders Accepted

By Allan Temko

Editor's Note: The following review by Allan Temko is reprinted from the December 27, 1959, edition of the New York Times Book Review. Mr. Temko, author of Notre Dame de Paris, is Architectural Forum's associate editor for the West Coast.

DISCOURSES ON ARCHITECTURE

By Eugene Emmanuel Viollet-le-Duc. Translated from the French by Benjamin Bucknall. Illustrated. 2 vols. 955 pp. New York: Grove Press. \$25.

Nearly a century has passed since these magnificent volumes—the first in 1863 and the second nine years later —proclaimed a functionalist "architecture of our own times," based on "organic" principles of design and "rational" use of industrial technology. Thus modern architecture, or at least the first complete theory of the modern, came to light in the fervent pages of this great treatise, which ranks closely behind *Das Kapital* and *The Origin of Species* as one of the seminal books of its age. Already the new architecture forseen by Eugene Emmanuel Viollet-le-Duc stands triumphant over the neo-classical tradition which he hated, and its logical structures of steel and reinforced concrete have begun to change the face of the world.

Yet in contrast to his contemporaries Marx and Darwin, Viollet-le-Duc remains largely ignored by the educated public, including most architects, who know his revolutionary brilliance only at second hand, as transmitted through the prismatic intelligences of Frank Lloyd Wright and Le Corbusier. The stature of the disciples is one measure of the prophet. Behind the titanic innovators of the twentieth century looms a giant of the nineteenth—not only an architect and graphic artist of genius, but a superb cultural historian, social philosopher and archaeologist as well—who by paradox is remembered chiefly as the "romantic" restorer of Notre Dame of Paris, Carcassonne, Vezelay and a prodigious number of other medieval monuments.

In fact, however, although he created no modern buildings except on paper, Viollet-le-Duc was one of the most inventive spirits in the history of architecture; and special thanks are due to the Grove Press for reprinting Benjamin Bucknall's excellent old translation of his neglected masterpiece, which has long been out of print. These massive and beautifully illustrated books reproduce the edition of 1889, which the young Wright, bitterly at odds with the academicians, committed virtually to memory in lieu of any other suitable textbook. Later he gave the *Discourses* to his son John, remarking that they contained "all the architectural schooling you will ever need."

The remark was not quite accurate, for the author never intended them to provide a complete architectural

(Continued on Page 14)

Our own IMAGE is drawing nearer. It will soon be the responsibility of all of the Architects to stand up and to be counted. Each man must make his own IMAGE be that which can only be looked upon as good and worthy.

The Convention time is near at hand, and it behooves us all to take stock of our profession and of our professional organization. Only we as a group can accomplish many of the things which have to be done. Our group must work together and must work in harmony with all small differences eliminated. Our group IMAGE is made of many small parts. All of these small parts must be in harmony with each other and must be of the quality which we would have the complete group attain. We must attend to the group needs as much as we attend to our selfish needs.

Our speakers for the convention are interested in our profession and would like to help in any small manner to have the public understand the qualities of this profession. We must know and understand ourselves before we can be of any assistance to our client in understanding him and his problems. We must have a correct IMAGE of ourselves as well as of our clients and their needs.

Conventions are the place to air our separate feelings wherein they may be heard by an understanding audience and where our separate IMAGES may be brought together to help one another.

Please do not forget your fellow professional and help him as you would have him help you.

See you at the Convention.

1960 ASO Convention Dayton, Ohio Biltmore Hotel October 19-20-21, 1960



(Continued from Page 13)

education. The *Discourses* actually were elaborations of the lectures, or *entretiens*, which Viollet-le-Duc under the auspices of the Second Empire (which he served as court architect) tried to deliver in the 1860's in the very stronghold of neo-classicism, the Ecole des Beaux-Arts. The students, partly because of their intense dislike for the political regime which sponsored him, responded with hooting, animal calls and the tossing of coins. After six boisterous sessions, Viollet-le-Duc gave up.

At the request of some young architects he established his own teaching atelier, the prototype of Wright's Taliesin. Among his students was the most adventurous French architect of the succeeding generation, Anatole de Baudot, who in 1894 built Saint-Jean de Montmartre, the first church of reinforced concrete. From Baudot the master's influence extended directly to Auguste Perret, one of the earliest authentic modernists, and thence to Le Corbusier and the entire contemporary movement.

What Viollet-le-Duc taught his followers was essentially a moral philosophy of architecture. His doctrine called for a rebirth of principle in the art of construction at a moment when it was needed as never before in history. Academic architecture had sunk to a level of unparalleled falseness, garnished with historical trappings that were supposed to produce "style," but Viollet-le-Duc argued that stylistic beauty depends on the "truth" of the structural "organism" as a logical expression of its "function."

Writing only four years after Darwin published the theory of natural selection, Viollet-le-Duc found striking illustrations of his cardinal principle in nature, which "invariably produces style in her productions." In a flower, for example, he wrote that "we can subtract nothing * * * for each part of its organism expresses a function by taking a form which is appropriate to that function."

To follow the example of nature in a "complicated civilization," Viollet-le-Duc conceded, "is not easy," but nevertheless he found an analogy in the locomotive, "Some will call it an ugly machine. But why ugly?" He saw the engine "almost as a living being [whose] external form is the simple expression of its strength." Sixty years later Le Corbusier would extend the analogy to the airplane, and at the same time describe a house as "a machine for living," but he would not have said anything more radical or new.

Viollet-le-Duc, of course, did not invent the functionalist theory which, in a sense, can be traced back to the utilitarian esthetics that Plato ascribed to Socrates. Furthermore, from the eighteenth century onward a host of protofunctionalist theories appeared, including the remarkable speculations of the American sculptor Horatio Greenough (of whom Viollet-le-Duc surely knew nothing). But the system of the great Frenchman went far beyond the others, if only because it was a complete system which drew inspiration not only from the on-rushing Industrial Revolution, but also from the full range of the history of architecture in the West. All fine architecture, he asserted, had

(Continued on Page 15)

(Continued from Page 14)

always been created according to the principle he proposed. But that principle had been forgotten during the period of facadism which began with the Renaissance. To see truthful architecture, we would have to look back to the Middle Ages.

As the restorer of almost every major cathedral in France, Viollet-le-Duc possessed a firsthand familiarity with the Gothic that probably will never be equaled. Today he can be pardoned (although waspish critics refuse to do so) for assuming that medieval architecture was designed throughout with absolute structural logic. The bombardments of World War I, which carried away ribs and buttresses, and still the vaults held, demonstrated that his concept of medieval "rationalism" was greatly exaggerated, not to say false.

Poetically, Viollet-le-Duc was right. The structural dialectic expressed dynamically in the flying arch and the soaring spire holds the most profound implications for the weightless, scientifically designed architecture of the present day. Viollet-le-Duc died in 1879 at the age of 65 and did not see the mature development of steel and reinforced concrete, but he prophesied a metal architecture remarkably like our own and offered fascinating designs for castiron structures which would span vast spaces, and reduce walls and floors to skeletal grids. He also noted the even more accomplished work of his contemporaries such as Jules Saulnier. Yet all this was only part of his contribution to the future. If you would see his monument, do not look at any book or single building, but consider the unprecedented potential beauty of the environment in the second half of the twentieth century. "Laboremus," he wrote, echoing the last words of Septimus Severus: "Let us work." He was one of the makers of civilized life.

Stained Glass Association Meets In Cleveland

Members of the Stained Glass Association of America convened in June for the 51st Annual Conference of the Association. The meeting was one of the largest in recent years, with more than 125 persons in attendance.

For three days the Wade Park Manor Hotel in Cleveland was filled with artists, designers and architects gathered from all over the country. The hotel's lobby was brilliant with stained glass panels, and other exhibits were featured in churches and buildings throughout the city.

Ohio craftsmen present included Michael Poremba, Cleveland; the Helf family, Franklin Art Glass, Columbus; John Riordan and Jim Taylor, G. C. Riordan Studios, Cincinnati; and Paul Phillips, Phillips Stained Glass Studios, Cleveland; and Otto C. Winterich, Winterich Studios, Cleveland.

The featured speech entitled "Symbolism" was given by Harold E. Wagoner, eminent Philadelphia church architect. Mr. Wagoner along with Anthony Ciresi, Cleveland architect, participated in the various panel discussions and workshops which contributed greatly to the conference. SEPTEMBER, 1960





• Direct application saves slow, costly preparation. Scaffolding and application time are slashed, other trades can follow up fast.

• Applied right on steel, MONO-KOTE leaves maximum space for mechanical installations, saves up to 7-inches per story in height.

• Hard, firm monolithic surface has high resistance to fissuring and cracking, withstands severe temperature and humidity changes.

Complete data on new Zonolite Mono-Kote, including Underwriters' Laboratories fire test information, is yours for the asking. Phone your Zonolite Sales Office, or write Zonolite Company today.

ZONOLITE COMPANY

135 S. LaSalle Street, Chicago 3, Illinois



Plain or fancy...

you can strengthen just about any kind of masonry wall with Dur-o-wal

Hats off to today's architectural designers for a new world of beauty in concrete masonry. And orchids to the modern builders who are making that beauty last with Dur-o-wal. It's the rare block pattern, plain or fancy, that does not permit America's most practical, most widely used, most widely proved masonry wall reinforcement. Dur-o-wal is versatile.

Dur-o-wal's trussed, butt-welded construction-with deformed rods that lay straight and flat-has been engineered to do a job. Increases the flexural strength of a masonry wall at least 71 per cent, as much as 261 per cent, depending on the weight Dur-o-wal used, number of courses, and type of mortar. This makes for truly permanent masonry wall construction and looks.

For technical details, write to any of the Dur-o-wal locations below. See us in Sweet's.

DUR-O-WAL Masonry Wall Reinforcement and Rapid Control Joint

RIGID BACKBONE OF STEEL FOR EVERY MASONRY WALL

DUR-O-WAL MANUFACTURING PLANTS

- Dur-O-wal Div., Cedar Rapids Block Co., CEDAR RAPIDS, IA.
 Dur-O-wal of III., 119 N. River St., AURORA, ILL.
- . Dur-O-wal Prod., Inc., Box 628, SYRACUSE, N. Y.
- Dur-O-waL Div., Frontier Mfg. Co., Box 49, PHOENIX, ARIZ.
 Dur-O-waL of Colorado, 29th and Court St., PUEBLO, COLO.
- Dur-O-wal Prod., Inc., 4500 E. Lombard St., BALTIMORE, MD.
 Dur-O-wal Inc., 165 Utah Street, TOLEDO, OHIO
- Dur-O-waL Prod. of Ala., Inc., Box 5446, BIRMINGHAM, ALA.



Two engineered products that meet a need. Dur-o-wal reinforcement, shown above, and Rapid Control Joint, below. Weatherproof neoprene flanges on the latter flex with the joint, simplify the caulking problem.



C. B. Hindall Joins Vorys Brothers

Arthur M. Vorys, president of Vorys Brothers, Inc., wholesale distributors of metals and supplies, recently announced



the appointment of C. B. Hindall as technical consultant in roofing and architectural metals and chief of the firm's new Architects and Engineers A d v i s o r y Group.

Hindall

A native of Ada, Ohio, Hindall received his degree from Ohio Northern University and did post-graduate work at Ohio State University.

Since 1945 he has owned his own metal fabricating business which he has liquidated to join Vorys Brothers, Inc. where he can devote all of his time to the developmental aspects of the crafts. Hindall's consultation services will be made available by Vorys Brothers, Inc. only to architects, mechanical engineers and contractors and to industrial tooling designers and production engineers.

Federal Seaboard Appoints Herman Oechsler

The appointment of Herman Oechsler to the position of director of research has been announced by Federal Seaboard Terra Cotta Corp. Mr. Oechsler, who was educated in Germany, has been a ceramic engineer with the terra cotta manufacturer for the last five years. Prior to joining Federal Seaboard, he had been employed by the Emco Porcelain Enamel Co., Inc.

Federal Seaboard Terra Cotta Corp. has been in continuous operation since 1888 and today is the world's largest producer of Ceramic Veneer, the modern architectural terra cotta. Executive offices are at 10 E. 40th St., New York 16, N. Y. and the plant is located at Perth Amboy, N. J. QUALITY FLUORESCENT LIGHTING FIXTURES for

SCHOOLS OFFICES STORES FACTORIES

LOUISVILLE LAMP CO., INC. LOUISVILLE 3, KENTUCKY FOR QUICK SERVICE

CALL JU 7-6094

OHIO REPRESENTATIVE JOHN G. LEWE H. H. (SANDY) HOMAN MARIEMONT CENTER BLDG. ROOM 102 CINCINNATI 27, OHIO Phone BRomble 1-5502

with Will-Burt's firing and control system!

A Will-Burt Firing and Control System will bring coal from bin to stoker...feed coal to the fire at any of three adjustable rates... automatically adjust air supply, minute by minute, according to fuel bed needs...and operate one, two, or more stokers on a pre-set cycle, according to hourly temperature requirements.

What could be more automatic . . . or more sensible?



...just a

W-B Automatic self-adjusting Air Control . . . part of every W-B Stoker.



W-B Coal Conveyor . . . power-reversing to clear obstructions . . . operates at any angle.



Take our word for it, it's economical. Write direct - or ask your Will-Burt Stoker Specialist for bulletins and help on selection and installation.





Standard detailing ... or custom designing



Actual job experience with custom metal curtain wall was the basis for MICHAELS' new "Curtain Wall Index". Here, in one convenient reference, are

scaled details for nine standard aluminum and stainless steel systems with variable components, standard door and vertically pivoted windows. In the field of custom design, MICHAELS has been giving architects detailed engineering assistance for years. In fact, to date, MICHAELS has designed and fabricated over a million

sq. ft. of metal curtain wall. Perhaps this vast experience can be of help to you on your next project. Write for your Index today.



THE MICHAELS ART BRONZE CO., P. O. BOX 668, COVINGTON, KY.

Crane Plastics Awarded European Contract For Multi-Hollow Extrusions

Robert S. Crane, Jr., president of Crane Plastics, Inc., Columbus, announced upon his return from France that his company had completed negotiations to develop and extrude rigid vinyl sections for European manufacturers of prime windows and doors.

The Crane firm, a major supplier of flexible plastic spline and weatherstripping, had developed hundreds of rigid shapes of the window and door industry. Types to be manufactured in Europe under Crane's supervision include those employing the multi-hollow production techniques pioneered by Crane.

The Crane organization has worked closely with the Pechiney Corp., giant French chemical company, in testing Afcovil, a rigid vinyl compound to be used in the manufacture of these extrusions in European plants. Plans call for the Pechiney Corp. to set up a separate division to implement production.

Crane Plastics is the first custom extruder to research and develop the practical production of certain complex shapes in rigid plastics. This pioneering in the tooling and production of multiple-hollow extrusions has attracted the interest of production manufacturers in many lines of business here and abroad. The Crane firm produces a wide range of extrusions from eight modern high-speed extruding machines.



Architectural Models and Renderings As us for quotations on models constructed in plastic and on renderings in tempera. Send plans with request Model of Barber and Associates Chitester Barber and Associates And Associates Britectural Models and Renderings Model of Barber and Associates Associates And Associates Associates Associates Associates Asso



OVERLY FIGHTS FIRE WITH FIRE

One of the continuing contradictions until recently in fire-safety and life-safety standards for interior and exterior fire exits was the fact that the inactive leaf in a pair of doors could not be U/L labeled. Manually operated top and bottom bolts on the inactive leaf could not be opened under panic conditions, and although the doors might have passed fire-safety requirements of U/L they could not meet U/L's casualty and accident requirements.

The result was a general compromise forced upon the architectural and building industry, where firesafety and life-safety might be specified, but could not actually be provided with existing fire doors and fire exit hardware.

These contradictions ended recently when the new Overly Fire Barrier With Exit Hardware was successfully tested at Underwriters' Laboratories for firesafety and life-safety. New panic-bar actuated top and bottom bolts added to already-tested fire doors now provide architects with a U/L approved Overly Fire Barrier that is both panic-proof and fire-proof.

Are You Aware of the fact that over 40% of the hollow metal door producers are located in the Northeastern seaboard area, which represents only 25% of the American non-residential building market? Only one manufacturer has made a serious attempt to service these major markets by establishing plants in the East, the Midwest and the West Coast.

The Most Unusual Doors we've ever made were ordered recently by a southern church. Custom-crafted in statuary bronze, the doors had to be hand-burnished and colored to the precise sheen required for the church interior. This job was handled by our oldest craftsmen, many of whom learned their trades in Europe, and the door order took months to finish because of the custom design and finish.



Manufacturers of hollow metal products, stainless steel entrances, architectural metal work and church spires.

"To The Point" is published by Overly Manufacturing Company for the express interest of the architectural and building professions. Your comments are welcome and will be discussed in this column. Write: H. W. Wehe, Jr., Executive Vice President, Overly Manufacturing Company, Greensburg, Pa. Other Overly plants at St. Louis, Mo., and Los Angeles, Calif.



CV GRILLES

offer a wide choice of designs in the widest possible choice of colors

Twelve standard designs in Ceramic Veneer grilles are now available from Federal Seaboard in a vast range of ceramic colors. Wherever a solar screen or perforated facade is desirable for sun control, ventilation or to insure privacy while enhancing appearance, you can now design with color in mind by specifying Ceramic Veneer grilles. In addition to the standard units, Federal Seaboard will custom-make grilles of your own design at slightly higher cost. With Ceramic Veneer grilles you are always assured of permanent colors, high quality and a uniformly glazed finish that retains its original beauty with minimum maintenance.

> For solar screen and color guide brochures, write today to: F E D E R A L S E A B O A R D T E R R A C O T T A C O R P O R A T I O N 10 East 40th St., New York 16, N. Y. Plant at Perth Amboy, New Jersey



All-Steel's New Line Offers Flexibility, Completeness



A wide range of decorator colors and flexibility that readily lends itself to custom design are among the features emphasized in the new contemporary metal office furniture line being introduced by All-Steel Equipment Inc.

The new 4000 Line consists of 75 basic units and thousands of possible variations, according to Joe Hartman, vice president-furniture sales. "It offers flexibility as broad as the user's imagination," he said, "and a completeness that satisfies the needs of everyone from the chairman of the board to the clerical force."

Keynote of the line's flexibility is the component parts which may easily be assembled in almost unlimited variations. This invites custom design influences as well as satisfying the constant broad requirement for standard desks and credenzas.

Executive, secretarial and clerical desks are among the basic units in the 4000 Line, along with executive and clerical L-units, credenzas, bookcases, storage units, and work and conference tables. Saddle seating, unique in metal office furniture lines, is one of the features of the 1600 and 1800 lines of chairs being introduced along with the 4000 Line. The chairs are upholstered in fabrics, leathers or naugahydes, with foam rubber cushioning.

Additional detailed information about the new 4000 Line can be obtained by writing All-Steel Equipment Inc., Aurora, Ill., and requesting Catalog Number CD-1.

Eiselt To Serve On German Village Commission

Richard H. Eiselt, AIA, has been appointed to the German Village Commission of Columbus. The Commission was created to advise the city on how to preserve and restore the Germansettled area on the south side of Columbus.

C. B. Wilcox Joins Koppers Wood Preserving

C. B. Wilcox has joined the Wood Preserving Division of Koppers Co., Inc. as manager, Building Code Dept., it was announced recently by Douglas Grymes, vice president and general manager of the Division.

A native of Michigan, Mr. Wilcox is a graduate of the Tri-State College of Engineering at Angola, Ind. with a degree in Civil Engineering. After graduation he joined Ceco Steel Products Co., in Chicago as an engineer. Since 1951 he has served in various capacities with the National Lumber Manufacturers Association, both in Chicago and in Washington, D. C. Prior to joining Koppers, Mr. Wilcox was manager of the Building Code Dept. of N.L.M.A.



Here's information about a unique new type of Gas Heating, Mr. Architect

see what one "Satisfied User" has to say about the New Infra-Red GAS Heaters

Don F. Marsh, General Manager of the Midwestern VW Corporation, says:

"Just the thing for a warehouse operation such as ours. They have more than proved our faith in them, both from the standpoint of low-cost operation and fine service."

Other points brought out in discussion:

• Employees standing under the warm rays of these unique Gas heaters are always comfortable.

• Parts . . . bins . . . floors . . . all solid objects exposed to this infra-red heat are warmed while the air itself is unaffected.

• Because the air is not heated, there is no need for fans or blowers. Because the air is still, it doesn't scatter dust, cause drafts, or make noise.

• The warehouse door to the loading dock is open much of the time. This doesn't affect the building temperature, because there's no air movement with Infra-Red Gas Heating.

• Moving a carload of cold parts into the warehouse used to drop the temperature. They never notice any temperature change with this type of heating.

• They're "rugged" as can be. Once the pilots were adjusted, they had no maintenance problems at all.

• They are pleased with the low B.T.U. consumption of these Infra-Red Gas Heaters. They saved money right at the outset.

• The architects are excited about this new type of Gas Heating, too. They plan to install it in the new service building now being designed.

Infra-Red Gas Heaters have many applications in industry, over and above their use for indoor or outdoor controlled comfort heating. For further information on this completely new, Gas-fired heating unit, call the Business Promotion or Commercial Representative at your nearest Gas Company Office.



Perfection Schwank Infra-Red GAS Heaters comfortably heat the new 20,000 sq. ft. Parts Warehouse of the Midwestern VW Corporation, 1125 Kinnear Rd., Columbus, even on the coldest days.



THE OHIO FUEL GAS COMPANY

Elevators

Electric Freight Electric Passenger Oil Hydraulic Passenger Oil Hydraulic Freight

Dumb Waiters Electric Oil Hydraulic

> Ash Hoists Hand Power Oil Hydraulic

Residence Elevators

Electric Oil Hydraulic

CAPITAL ELEVATOR & MFG. CO.

424 W. Town St., Columbus CApital 4-2437



ADVERTISERS IN OHIO ARCHITECT

- Andersen Corporation
 12

 (Campbell-Mithun, Inc.)
 12

 Julius Blum & Co., Inc.
 24

 (Seery & Ward Advertising)
 24

 Blumcraft of Pittsburgh
 2

 Capital Elevator & Mfg. Co
 22

 Clay Sewer Pine Assn
 4
- Clay Sewer Pipe Assn. (Norman Malone Associates)
- Cleveland Builders Supply Co. 19 (Louis C. Oswald & Associates)
- Dur-O-Wal Inc. 16 (Roche, Richard & Cleary, Inc.)
- East Ohio Gas Co. (Ketchum, MacLeod & Grove, Inc)
- Federal Seaboard Terra Cotta Corp. . . 20 (Persons Advertising, Inc.)
- Louisville Lamp Co., Inc. 17
- Meierjohan-Wengler Co. 22 (L. F. McCarthy Co.)
- The Michaels Art Bronze Co., Inc. 18 (Seery & Ward Advertising)
- Ohio Fuel Gas Company 21

- Prescolite Mfg. Corp. 20 (L. C. Cole Company, Inc.)
- The Will-Burt Co. 17 (Clark & Bobertz, Inc.)
- Zonolite Co. 15 (Fuller & Smith & Ross Inc.)

Air Conditioning - Heating - Ventilating Plumbing

> THEODORE REDNER Mechanical Engineer

198 East Aurora Road Northfield, Ohio

Tel: IM 7-5585

Hixson, Tarter and Associates

CONSULTING-STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS

2306 PARK AVENUE CINCINNATI 6. OHIO CAPITOL 1-1473

PCA Exhibit Wins Awards

5



Winning awards has become standard practice for this striking exhibit booth created by the Portland Cement Association. The display was one of four out of 125 exhibits singled out for special recognition by the American Institute of Architects at its 1960 convention in San Francisco. Since then, the booth has taken top honors for outstanding design at AIA regional meetings in Winston-Salem, N. C. and Asbury Park, N. J.

PCA's prize-winning exhibit features a hyperbolic paraboloid roof and a display of color transparencies illustrating buildings of concrete masonry.

RUSSELL	S. FLING			
& ASSOCIATES CONSULTING ENGINEERS DESIGN — CONSULTING — REPORTS REG. ENGINEERS — REG. ARCHITECT				
				COLUMBUS 15, OHIO 1-7718
			GORDON H. FRO	ST & ASSOCIATES
			CONSULTING MECH	ANICAL ENGINEERS
HEATING - V	ENTILATING			
	DITIONING			
PLUMBING	DRAINAGE			
725 CHERRY ST.	REGISTERED			
TOLEDO 4. OHIO TE-CH 4-3401	OHIO-MICHIGAN INDIANA			
VARO E	NGINEERS			
ARTHUR V	AJDA, P.E.			
	KOFF, P.E.			
D. W. MCCLI	INTOCK, P.E.			
STRUCTURAL FLE	TRICAL MATERIAL			

STRUCTURAL, ELECTRICAL, MATERIAL Handling, processing, surveying

1641-1649 BROADVIEW AVE. MEMORIAL BLDG. COLUMBUS 12, O. NEWARK, O.

OHIO ARCHITECT



Modern school uses precast concrete ... reduces costs to less than \$1100 per square foot!



Precast concrete "bent" being swung into place at new Linton-Stockton Elementary School. Designers: T. C. Dorste and S. G. Pantazi, Indianapolis. Structural engineer: F. E. Burroughs, Indianapolis.

How to get the best school at the lowest cost. This is a common problem in growing communities. The Linton-Stockton Elementary School in Linton, Indiana, solved it with precast concrete.

The school building has received wide acclaim in educational circles... and the cost was only \$10.87 per square foot.

There are 36 classrooms in all, each averaging 1200 square feet in size. Total accommodations: 1200 pupils. Total cost for this 80,000 square foot school: \$870,000.

Construction was relatively simple. The frame was formed by precast concrete members supporting precast roof slabs. All precasting was done at the site.

Careful planning, standardization of members and re-use of forms helped hold down costs and building time. Other advantages include low maintenance, long life, low annual cost and high fire safety.

If your community is considering a new school, it should definitely consider precast concrete. Free information will be sent on request.



A national organization to improve and extend the uses of concrete



Accepted as controlled circulation Ohio. Athens, 0 publication

. . or OW U • -> -S U 0 DIREC × -A RO 10 > NO A E NEW œ Y35 NASHIN or

2

44

ARCHITECTS SOCIETY OF OHIO RETURN POSTAGE GUARANTEED FIVE EAST LONG STREET COLUMBUS 15, OHIO



CARLSTADT* Aluminum Railings: sturdy, attractive, easy to fabricate and install

Wall brackets for the Carlstadt railing system, adjustable for railing pitch, are easily anchored to any kind of wall surface. Carlstadt railing components are designed for greatest strength so as to withstand hard usage, as in schools and public buildings. The wide variety of stock handrails, posts and accessories allows the architect freedom of design, while affording the economy of quantity production.

More than 8,000 items in stock. See Catalog No. 8 or Sweet's Architectural File No. 6e/BL. Phones: Carlstadt, N. J., GEneva 8-4600; Philadelphia, MArket 7-7596; New York, OXford 5-2236

JULIUS BLUM & CO. INC., CARLSTADT, NEW JERSEY 6 6 动物 J3. J 134 1910-1960